
 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
Agenda 
 

Date Wednesday 21st September 2022 
 

Time 6.00 pm 
 

Venue Council Chamber, Civic Centre, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires any advice on 
any item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect 
his/her ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul 
Entwistle or Constitutional Services in advance of the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this Agenda is Constitutional Services Tel. 0161 
770 5151 or email Constitutional.Services@oldham.gov.uk 
   
3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS – Any member of the public wishing to ask a 
question at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the 
question is submitted to the Contact officer by 12 Noon on Friday, 16th 
September 2022. 
 
4.  FILMING – This meeting will be recorded for live and/or subsequent 
broadcast on the Council’s website.  The whole of the meeting will be 
recorded, except where there are confidential or exempt items and the 
footage will be on our website. This activity promotes democratic 
engagement in accordance with section 100A(9) of the Local Government 
Act 1972. The cameras will focus on the proceedings of the meeting. As far 
as possible, this will avoid areas specifically designated for members of the 
public who prefer not to be filmed. Disruptive and anti-social behaviour will 
always be filmed. 
 
Any member of the public who attends a meeting and objects to being filmed 
for the Council’s broadcast should advise the Constitutional Services Officer 
who will instruct that they are not included in the filming. 
 
Members of the public and the press may also record / film / photograph or 
broadcast this meeting when the public and the press are not lawfully 
excluded. Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio 
and visual will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a 
private meeting is held. 
 
Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law 
including the law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection 
Act and the law on public order offences. 
 
Please also note the Public attendance Protocol on the Council’s Website 
 
https://www.oldham.gov.uk/homepage/1449/attending_council_meetings 

Public Document Pack

mailto:Constitutional.Services@oldham.gov.uk
https://www.oldham.gov.uk/homepage/1449/attending_council_meetings


 
 

 
 MEMBERSHIP OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE IS AS FOLLOWS: 
 Councillors Al-Hamdani, Dean (Chair), H. Gloster, Hobin, F Hussain, 

Lancaster, Surjan, Woodvine, Cosgrove, A Hussain, S Hussain, Islam, 
Nasheen and C. Phythian 
 

 

Item No  

1   Apologies For Absence  

2   Urgent Business  

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

4   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

5   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 6) 

 The Minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 24th August 2022 
are attached for Members’ approval. 

6   FUL/348818/22 - Land South of Greenside Way / West of Greengate, Greengate 
Industrial Estate, Oldham (Pages 7 - 18) 

 Erection of two buildings with combined floorspace of 7,540m² GEA / 7,308m² 
GIA to be used in any combination of Use Class E(g)(i)(ii)(iii) (offices, research 
and development, light industrial), Use Class B2 (general industrial) and / or Use 
Class B8 (storage / distribution), with associated parking and refuse storage, to 
be accessed via a new access onto Greenside Way with associated hard and 
soft landscaping. 
 

7   HOU/349347/22 - 49 Heron Street, Oldham, OL8 4LP (Pages 19 - 22) 

 Part-retrospective application for alterations to the existing roof, insertion of 
rooflights and render. 
 

8   HOU/349546/22 - 227 Windsor Road, Oldham, OL8 1AE (Pages 23 - 26) 

 First floor rear extension 
 



 
 

9   Appeals Update (Pages 27 - 30) 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
24/08/2022 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Dean (Chair)  
Councillors Al-Hamdani, H. Gloster, Lancaster, Surjan, 
Woodvine, Cosgrove, S Hussain, Islam, Nasheen and 
C. Phythian 

 Also in Attendance: 
 Peter Richards Head of Planning 
 Alan Evans Group Solicitor 
 Wendy Moorhouse Principal Transport Officer 
 Graham Dickman Special Projects Development Lead 
 Kaidy McCann Constitutional Services 
 Martyn Leigh Development Management Team 

Leader 
 Laila Chowdhury Constitutional Services 
 Stephen Gill Planning Officer 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor F Hussain 
and Councillor Hobin. 
 

2   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 
 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received. 
 

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 6th July 
2022 be approved as a correct record. 
 

6   FUL/348807/22 - PUBLIC TOILETS, KING GEORGE V 
PLAYING FIELDS, WADE ROW, UPPERMILL, OL3 6BF  

 

APPLICATION NUMBER: FUL/348807/22 
 
APPLICANT: Mr Rick Scholes 

 
PROPOSAL:  1) Conversion of public toilet to café with ancillary 
takeaway 2) Provision of public toilet 3) External alterations to 
building including removal of pitched roof and replacement with 
green roof 4) Single storey glazed extension 5) Bin store. 
 
LOCATION:  Public Toilets, King George V Playing Fields, 
Wade Row, Uppermill, OL3 6BF 
 Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 

It was MOVED by Councillor Surjan and SECONDED by 
Councillor C Phythian that the application be APPROVED. 
 
On being put to the vote 9 VOTES were cast IN FAVOUR OF 
APPROVAL and 2 VOTES were cast AGAINST with 0 
ABSTENTIONS. 
 
 
DECISION: That the application be GRANTED subject to the 
conditions as outlined in the report and the additional conditions 
contained within the Late List. 
 
NOTES: 
 
1. That an Objector, the Applicant and a Ward Member 

attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on 
this application. 

 
2. In reaching its decision, the Committee took into 

consideration the information as set out in the Late List 
attached at Item 14. 

 

7   FUL/348550/22 - HILL TOP FARM, HEALDS GREEN, 
CHADDERTON, OL1 2SB.  

 

APPLICATION NUMBER: FUL/348550/22 
 
APPLICANT: Mr L Dransfield 

 
PROPOSAL:  Erection of indoor menage extending to circa 35m 
x 25m. 
 
LOCATION:  Hill Top Farm, Healds Green, Chadderton, OL1 
2SB. 
 
It was MOVED by Councillor Surjan and SECONDED by 
Councillor Islam that the application be REFUSED (against 
Officer recommendations). 
 
On being put to the vote 9 VOTES were cast IN FAVOUR OF 
REFUSAL and 2 VOTES were cast AGAINST with 0 
ABSTENTIONS. 
 
 
DECISION: That the application be REFUSED for the following 
reasons: The proposed building to accommodate an indoor 
menage represents inappropriate development in the Green Belt 
which is, by definition, harmful having regard to paragraph 147 
of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).  
Inappropriate development can only be supported where other 
considerations exist which clearly outweigh the extent of harm 
caused by reason of its inappropriateness, and any other harm, 
so as to amount to ‘very special circumstances’.  The extent of 
harm which would result from the proposal includes 
encroachment into the countryside, urban sprawl, and a 
detrimental impact on the openness of the Green Belt.  Having Page 2



 

regard to paragraph 147 of the NPPF the applicant has not 
demonstrated that very special circumstances exist and 
therefore the principle of development cannot be supported.  As 
such, the proposal is contrary to Local Plan Policy 22 and 
paragraphs 138, 147, 148 and 149 of the NPPF. 
 
NOTES: 
 
That an Objector, the Applicant and a Ward Member attended 
the meeting and addressed the Committee on this application. 
 

8   FUL/348898/22 - LAND AT SNIPE CLOUGH, OLDHAM   

APPLICATION NUMBER: FUL/348898/22 
 
APPLICANT: Northern Roots (Oldham) Ltd 

 
PROPOSAL:  Hybrid planning application seeking full/part 
outline consent comprising:, (a) Full application for the erection 
of a visitor centre, events building with meeting pods, learning 
centre, forestry depot, ground mounted solar PV array and 
associated works, relocation of football pitch provision, 
necessary infrastructure, hard and soft landscaping, site wide 
vehicular, cycle parking and pedestrian improvements, including 
car park on Nether Hey Street., (b) Outline application (all 
matters reserved except for access) for a community growing 
allotment and swimming pond. 
 
LOCATION:  Land at Snipe Clough, Oldham 
 
DECISION: That the application be DEFFERED to a future 
meeting. 
 

9   FUL/348472/22 - LAND OFF CHERRY AVENUE AND SNIPE 
CLOUGH, OLDHAM, OL8 2HS  

 

APPLICATION NUMBER: FUL/348472/22 
 
APPLICANT: Anna da Silva 

 
PROPOSAL:  Full planning application for the construction of a 
Bike Recreation Hub (Use Class F2(c)) consisting of 2 bike track 
areas and ancillary service area, hard and soft landscaping, new 
car park on Cherry Avenue and footpath diversions and 
improvements and vehicular access improvements. 
 
 
LOCATION:  Land Off Cherry Avenue and Snipe Clough, 
Oldham, OL8 2HS 
 
It was MOVED by Councillor Dean and SECONDED by 
Councillor Islam that the application be APPROVED. 
 
On being put to the vote, it was UNANIMOUSLY cast IN 
FAVOUR OF APPROVAL. 
 Page 3



 

DECISION: That the application be GRANTED subject to the 
conditions as outlined in the report. 
 
NOTES: 
 
That the Applicant attended the meeting and addressed the 
Committee on this application. 
 

10   FUL/346142/21 - KNOLL MILL, WELLINGTON ROAD, 
GREENFIELD, OLDHAM  

 

APPLICATION NUMBER: FUL/346142/21 
 
APPLICANT: Mr Michael Carney 

 
PROPOSAL:  Conversion and addition of lift tower and two 
floors above existing mill, along with alterations to external 
elevations, to create 38 apartments with basement car parking 
 
 
LOCATION:  Knoll Mill, Wellington Road, Greenfield, Oldham 
 
It was MOVED by Councillor Dean and SECONDED by 
Councillor Al-Hamdani that the application be APPROVED. 
 
On being put to the vote, it was UNANIMOUSLY cast IN 
FAVOUR OF APPROVAL. 
 
DECISION: That the application be GRANTED subject to the 
conditions as outlined in the report and an additional condition in 
regards to the Management Plan and consultation with Hartley 
Botanics. 
 
NOTES: 
 
1. That the Applicant attended the meeting and addressed 

the Committee on this application. 
 
2. In reaching its decision, the Committee took into 

consideration the information as set out in the Late List 
attached at Item 14. 

 

11   HOU/349204/22 - 1 LONGDALE CLOSE, ROYTON   

APPLICATION NUMBER: HOU/349204/22 
 
APPLICANT: Mr Micheal Harrison 

 
PROPOSAL:  Single storey rear extension including new pitched 
roof to existing garage 
 
 
LOCATION:  1 Longdale Close, Royton 
 
It was MOVED by Councillor Dean and SECONDED by 
Councillor Cosgrove that the application be APPROVED. Page 4



 

 
On being put to the vote, it was UNANIMOUSLY cast IN 
FAVOUR OF APPROVAL. 
 
 
DECISION: That the application be GRANTED subject to the 
conditions as outlined in the report. 
 

12   HOU/349252/22 - 1079 MIDDLETON ROAD, CHADDERTON   

APPLICATION NUMBER: HOU/349252/22 
 
APPLICANT: Ms. Tanya Farrugia 

 
PROPOSAL:  Single storey rear extension  
 
LOCATION:  1079 Middleton Road, Chadderton 
 
It was MOVED by Councillor Dean and SECONDED by 
Councillor Islam that the application be APPROVED. 
 
 
On being put to the vote, it was UNANIMOUSLY cast IN 
FAVOUR OF APPROVAL. 
 
 
DECISION: That the application be GRANTED subject to the 
conditions as outlined in the report. 
 

13   PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE   

RESOLVED that the Appeals Update be noted. 
 

14   LATE LIST   

RESOLVED that the information contained in the Late List be 
noted. 
 
 

The meeting started at 6.00pm and ended at 8.53pm. 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



APPLICATION REPORT – FUL/348818/22 
Planning Committee 14th September 2022 

 
 
Registration Date: 7th April 2022 
Ward: Chadderton Central  
 
Application Reference: FUL/348818/22 
Type of Application: Full Application  
 
Proposal: Erection of two buildings with combined floorspace of 7,540m² GEA 

/ 7,308m² GIA to be used in any combination of Use Class 
E(g)(i)(ii)(iii) (offices, research and development, light industrial), 
Use Class B2 (general industrial) and / or Use Class B8 (storage / 
distribution), with associated parking and refuse storage, to be 
accessed via a new access onto Greenside Way with associated 
hard and soft landscaping. 
 

Location: Land South of Greenside Way / West of Greengate, Greengate 
Industrial Estate, Oldham 
 

Case Officer: Stephen Gill  
Applicant: Gemshaw Ltd  
Agent: Roman Summers Associates Ltd 
 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
In accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation the application is referred to Planning 

Committee for determination since it is a Major development proposing more than 1000m² of 

floor space.  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the application be approved subject to the conditions set out in this 

report and receipt of a signed Unilateral Undertaking from the applicant relating to the financial 

contribution to off-site biodiversity enhancement, and that the Head of Planning shall be 

authorised to issue the decision.  

 
 
THE SITE 
 
The site subject of the application measures 1.78 ha in size and forms part of the Greengate 

Industrial Estate in Middleton.  The site is approximately 3.5 miles to the east of Oldham town 

centre and comprises two connected plots of land to the immediate west and south of an 

existing industrial unit currently occupied by Jacques Products.  The site is bounded by 

Greenside Way to the north, and Greengate to the east. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



The site is located within an established industrial area (Greengate Industrial Estate), which 

is characterised by a variety of large, modern industrial ‘sheds’ and warehouses.  Blackley 

Golf Course flanks the site on its western side. 

 

THE PROPOSAL 
 

The application proposes the erection of two industrial buildings with a combined floorspace 

of 7,540m² GEA / 7,308m² GIA.  The uses proposed for the buildings include a combination 

of Use Class E(g)(i)(ii)(iii) (offices, research and development, light industrial), Use Class B2 

(general industrial) and / or Use Class B8 (storage / distribution), with associated parking and 

refuse storage, along with hard and soft landscaping. 

 
 
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
  
No relevant planning history  
 
 
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES 
 
The ‘Development Plan’ is the Joint Development Plan Document (Local Plan) which forms 

part of the Local Development Framework for Oldham.  The site is allocated in the Proposals 

Map associated with this document as being within Business Employment Area 3 (Chadderton 

/ Broadgate) (BEA 3). 

 

As such, the following policies are relevant to the determination of this application: 

 

Local Plan Policy 1 - Climate Change and Sustainable Development; 

Local Plan Policy 2 – Communities; 

Local Plan Policy 5 - Promoting Accessibility and Sustainable Transport; 

Local Plan Policy 9 - Local Environment; 

Local Plan Policy 14 - Supporting Oldham's Economy; 

Local Plan Policy 18 – Energy; 

Local Plan Policy 19 - Water and Flooding; 

Local Plan Policy 20 – Design; 

Local Plan Policy 21 - Protecting Natural Environmental Assets; and, 

Saved UDP Policy D1.5 – Protection of Trees on Development Sites 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



CONSULTATIONS 
 

Highways Engineer:  No objections  

 

Transport for Greater Manchester: No objection  

 

Environmental Health:  No objection 

 

Greater Manchester Archaeology  No objection 

Advisory Service     

 

Greater Manchester Ecology  No objection 

Advisory Service    

 

Arboricultural Officer Concerns raised in relation to tree loss, as explained in 

the report below. 

 

Lead Local Flood Authority  No response  

 

United Utilities   No objection subject to condition  

 

National Highways:    No objection 

 

 

REPRESENTATIONS  
 
The application has been publicised by means of neighbour notification letters, site notice and 
press notice.  In response, no representations have been received. 
 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Principle  
 

The site is located within the Business Employment Area 3 (Chadderton / Broadgate) (BEA 3) 

as set out in Policies 13 & 14 of the Local Plan.   Policy 14 states that development proposals 

for B2 & B8 uses are acceptable in Business Employment Areas and therefore the principle 

of development is considered acceptable.  

 
Design, Scale and Layout  

 

The site layout proposes two standalone industrial units, which are identified on the plans as 

being plot A, which is the unit that faces on to Greenside Way, and plot C, which is the larger 

of the two units and this would face Greengate.  Plot B already exists and is occupied by 

Jaques Products.  

 

Plot A & C will be connected via a new access road.  Both units will accommodate a gated 

access arrangement with service yards that are capable of full HGV vehicular movements.  

Full car parking provision for plot A is situated to the north of the building, and for plot C parking 

Page 9



provision is situated to the west of the building.  The layout is clearly designed to be functional 

in nature, offering an easy route for HGVs to access both units in a safe manner, with parking 

for staff and visitors clearly separate, which is acceptable.  No objections are raised to the 

proposed layout, given the nature of the end use and the sites designation.  

 

The scale of the buildings is in line with what would be expected in a Business Employment 

Area.  The units are rectangular, and simple in form, and as stated above, the scale of plot C 

is larger than plot A.  The overall height of plot A is approximately 11.5m, the width is 38m, 

and depth 55m, and in terms of plot C, the overall height is approximately 15m, the width is 

60m and the depth is 80m.  The Gross External Area of the buildings in combination is 

7,540sqm (plot A = 2,367sqm & plot C = 5,179sqm).  Overall, the scale and massing of the 

buildings is not considered to be out of character with what currently exists in the Business 

Employment Area.  

 

The buildings will be of a contemporary appearance.  The external walls of both units would 

be built using a combination of composite cladding panels, in a variety of colours, primarily 

shades of blue, grey and white, which does add a level of interest to what would otherwise be 

functional buildings.  The windows and entrance doors would be double glazed aluminium 

framed inserts, and the loading and dock doors would be insulated steel and polyester powder 

coated.   

 

Plot A proposes a gabled dual pitched roof with expressed eaves, and Unit C proposes a roof 

that is also dual pitched and hipped set behind a parapet wall, which is considered acceptable. 

The roofs of both buildings will be constructed from trapezoidal panels and roof lights will also 

be inserted.  The overall appearance of both buildings is considered to be acceptable. 

 

The proposal includes a range of hard boundary treatments, and these include a 2.4m paladin 

style fencing, which will surround the boundary of the site and the proposed units.  The access, 

internal roads and car park spaces will be a mixture of hot rolled asphalt and tarmac, the 

service areas will be concrete and the area surrounding the proposed buildings would be 

textured concrete paving.  These are the types of hard boundary treatments that are expected 

for this type of industrial development and will provide the necessary security and safety and 

are considered acceptable.   

 

Based on the above, the development is considered to comply with Policies 5, 9 & 20 and 

NPPF Section 12 given that the design, scale and layout does not have an adverse effect on 

the overall local character.  

 

Residential Amenity 

 

The nearest residential properties to the site are approximately 300m to the west of the site, 

which is a considerable distance. Given the distance between the development and the 

residential properties, it is not considered that the development will have any adverse impacts 

on the amenity of existing residents either visually or by way of noise and air quality.  

Environmental Health have been consulted on the application and have not objected on 

residential amenity grounds.  

 

Therefore, based on the above, the development will not have an adverse impact on 

Page 10



residential amenity subject to conditions and the development is considered to comply with 

Policy 9. 

 

Highways 

 

The development proposes 138 parking spaces, 10 disabled parking spaces, and 50 cycle 

spaces.  The Highways Engineer has reviewed the application and has no objections to the 

level of parking provision proposed and circulation space within the service yards for large 

vehicles such as HGV’s.  Furthermore, the site sits in a sustainable location with strong links 

to public transport, a wide range of local amenities and opportunities for walking and cycling.   

On this basis, the Highways Engineer does not envisage any additional significant increase in 

traffic generation to the detriment of highway safety and, therefore, the development is 

considered to comply with Policy 5.  A condition is attached to the recommendation which will 

require details of the construction, levels and drainage to ensure water does not discharge 

onto the highway.  

 

Ecology & Arboriculture  

 

In relation to trees, the applicant has submitted a Tree Survey and Constraints Report, 

undertaken by Amenity Tree.  The Tree Report concludes that 126 trees will be removed from 

the site in order to accommodate the development.  The Tree Survey states that all but 40 of 

the trees fall within category C, which are low value.  The remaining 40 trees would be 

characterised as being either semi mature or mature.  

 

The Arboricultural Officer has reviewed the details submitted and concludes that each tree if 

taken on its own merits as per BS5837 categorisation methodologies may arguably not be 

significant, but if they are to be taken as a whole, they should be considered significant 

because they contribute to the rich and varied localised habitat within a largely industrialised 

wider area.  The Arboricultural Officer therefore concludes that in accordance with retained 

UDP Policy D1.5, the trees lost should be replaced at a ratio of 3:1 given the overall value of 

the trees when grouped together.  This would result in the need for 378 new trees, and this 

mitigation would need to be delivered off-site at a cost of £300 per tree, which is a significant 

cost to the applicant not currently factored into the development costs.  

 

The Arboricultural Officers comments are fully noted, however, a few wider points need to be 

considered:  

 

1. The trees on the site are not protected by a Tree Preservation Order, and could be 

removed without any permission;  

 

2. The site is designated as being within a Business Employment Area, the intended use 

of the site is for employment purposes, to contribute to job creation in Oldham, and 

whilst the loss of trees on the site is unfortunate, on balance the need to create jobs 

and economic development in the current climate is critically important; 

 

3. The trees on site are category C trees, when taken individually, which has not been 

challenged by the Arboricultural Officer, and whilst they may have more merit 

Page 11



collectively, only 40 are considered semi-mature and/or mature as set out in retained 

UDP Policy D1.5; and,  

 

4. The applicant will be planting 153 new trees on the site to help address the loss, and 

this would provide nearly a 4:1 replacement of the 40 trees considered semi-mature or 

mature. 

 

As stated above the loss of the trees is unfortunate, however, when taking a wider view of the 

intended use for the site, significant weight should be given to helping accommodate this type 

of development, which will bring strong benefits to the community, including new economic 

development and job creation.  The trees are not protected and when taken individually are 

not of a high quality, and therefore on balance, for the reasons set out, it is not considered to 

be justified to request a substantial financial contribution for tree planting in this instance.  The 

applicant is offering to re-plant 153 trees and given the sites designation and benefits 

associated with the development, this is considered reasonable.  

 

In terms of ecology, Greater Manchester Ecology Unit (“GMEU”) have reviewed the 

information submitted and extensive discussions have taken place in relation to Biodiversity 

Net Gain (“BNG”).  The Ecology information submitted with the application has been reviewed, 

and no objections have been raised.  GMEU conclude that a Habitats Regulations Assessment 

(“HRA”) screening report has been carried out with regards to the potential impacts on the 

Rochdale Canal.   No likely pathways were found that would cause harm to the canal and no 

likely significant effects on the canal are anticipated.  

 

An assessment of the trees and their potential to support roosting bats has been carried 

out.   The assessment found 2no trees had potential roost features, however, on further 

inspection these features were found to be unsuitable for roosting bats.   A breeding bird 

survey has also been carried out, and both Dunnock and Starling were recorded on the site. 

Therefore, it is considered necessary to attach a condition that would ensure that any site 

clearance or vegetation/tree removal would need to take place outside of the main bird nesting 

season (March-August). 

 

A BNG metric has also been submitted with the application, and it suggests that there will be 

a net loss of 5 biodiversity units, equivalent to almost a 75% loss of the biodiversity value of 

the site.  GMEU conclude that whilst it is always preferable to secure delivery of habitats on 

the site, the scale of the predicated loss makes it unlikely that even if the soft landscaping 

proposed for the site is increased, no net loss/net gain will not be achieved.   Therefore, GMEU 

conclude that a financial contribution is required to address the BNG loss.  GMEU have agreed 

to a contribution of £45,000 and this will be secured through the developer entering into a 

Unilateral Undertaking with Oldham Council, and Oldham Council will then work closely with 

GMEU to establish where the money will be best spent.  Early indications point towards a peat 

restoration scheme within Oldham; however, this will need to be confirmed. 

 

Overall, the loss of trees has been justified for the reasons set out above and to account for 

the losses in BNG, the applicant will be providing a financial contribution, and with that 

considered, this is considered acceptable.  

 

 

Page 12



Drainage 

 

Local Plan Policy 19 states that the council will ensure development does not result in 

unacceptable flood risk or drainage problems by directing development away from areas at 

risk of flooding, and protecting and improving existing flood defences, water resources and 

quality, and that development proposals must carry out and pass the Sequential Test and, 

where necessary, the Exception Test, and be accompanied by a site-specific flood risk 

assessment.  

 

According to the Environment Agency Flood Maps, the whole site is in Flood Zone 1 (the 

lowest risk of flooding).  The proposal would be considered in the ‘less vulnerable’ use within 

flood risk vulnerability classification.  United Utilities (UU) have reviewed the details submitted 

and conclude that the development is acceptable subject to the submission of drainage details, 

which can be secured by condition.  

 

Therefore, subject to condition, the development accords with Local Plan Policy 19.  

 

Ground Conditions  

 

National guidance within paragraphs 178 and 179 of the NPPF and Local Plan Policies 7, 8 

and 9 are relevant, which seek to ensure that a site is suitable for its new use taking account 

of ground conditions, including from natural hazards or former activities such as mining, 

pollution arising from previous uses and any proposals for mitigation.  

 

The Environmental Health team has reviewed the submitted information and have confirmed 

that they have no objection to the development.  A Condition has been recommended in 

relation to landfill gas and a watching brief, and these would be attached to any decision notice, 

to ensure ground conditions are thoroughly assessed.  

 

The site is situated in a Development High Risk Area in relation to coal risk.  The Coal Authority 

have been consulted and have now confirmed that they have no objection to the application. 

The applicant has submitted a Geo Environmental Site Investigation Report Phase I, a Coal 

Authority Mining Report and Groundsure Report.   The information confirms that coal legacy 

of the site will not have any impact of ground stability and the risks are negligible, and no 

objection have been raised.  

 

Therefore, subject to conditions, the development complies with Policies 7, 8 & 9 and the 

associated requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework.  

 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
It is considered that the proposed development is acceptable and would readily integrate 

within the context of the Business Employment Area.  The development will deliver many 

benefits, which include:  

 

 Economic development in a Business Employment Area, which is precisely what the 

intended use is for the site as identified in the adopted Development Plan; 

Page 13



 

 The development will create jobs for local people both through the construction phase 

of development and through the eventual end uses of the buildings, which is a 

significant benefit; and 

 

 The development could attract new business to operate from inside Oldham, which 

encourages inward investment. 

 

The loss of the trees is unfortunate, and is a negative impact weighing against the scheme, 

however this is comprehensively outweighed by the benefits described above.  In addition, 

residential amenity will be unaffected by the development, and the occupiers of the 

neighbouring commercial uses would not be adversely impacted.  Highway and pedestrian 

safety would be maintained, and there would be no unacceptable impacts to the highway 

network.   Having regard to all planning and material considerations the proposal meets the 

criteria in the National Planning Policy Framework (Sections 5, 9 and 12), Local Plan policies 

1, 3, 5, 9, 15, 20 & 21.  

 
 
RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS 
 
Grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development must be begun not later than the expiry of THREE years beginning with 

the date of this permission.  REASON - To comply with the provisions of Section 51 of the 

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 

2. The development hereby approved shall be fully implemented in accordance with the 

Approved Details Schedule list on this decision notice.  REASON - For the avoidance of 

doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved 

plans and specifications. 

 

3. No development comprising the erection of any external walls shall take place until 

samples of the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the 

development, including the roof, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved details.  The materials to be used throughout the development shall be 

consistent in terms of colour, size and texture with the approved details. REASON - To 

ensure that the appearance of the development is acceptable in the interests of the visual 

amenity of the area having regard to Policy 20 of the Oldham Local Plan. 

 

4. Prior to the commencement of any part of the development hereby approved, details of 

the method of surface water and foul water drainage from the site shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall be 

implemented in full prior to first occupation of the approved development and shall be 

maintained thereafter. REASON - Prior approval of such details is necessary since they 

are fundamental to the initial site preparation works and to ensure that the site is 

satisfactorily drained having regard to Policy 19 of the Oldham Local Plan. 

 

Page 14



5. No development shall commence until a site investigation and assessment in relation to 

the landfill gas risk has been carried out and the consultant's written report and 

recommendation have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. Written approval from the Local Planning Authority will be required for any 

necessary programmed remedial measures and, on receipt of a satisfactory completion 

report, to discharge the condition. REASON - Prior approval of such details is necessary 

as they are fundamental to the initial site preparation works and in order to protect public 

safety as the site is located within 250 metres of a former landfill site having regard to 

Policy 9 of the Oldham Local Plan. 

 

6. No above groundwork shall take place until full details of a soft landscape scheme with an 

associated implementation plan, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The soft landscaping works shall include planting plans that give 

consideration to the requirements of breeding birds; written specifications (including 

cultivation and other operations associated with plant and grass establishment); schedules 

of replacement plants and trees, noting species, plant/tree sizes and proposed 

numbers/densities and the implementation and management programme. 

 

All planting shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details in the first 

available planting season following the completion of the development, or such longer 

period which has previously been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and 

shall be maintained for a period of 5 years from the agreed date of planting. Any trees or 

plants which die, become diseased, or are removed during the maintenance period shall 

be replaced with specimens of an equivalent species and size. 

 

REASON – Prior approval of such details is necessary as the site may contain features 

which require incorporation into the approved development, and to ensure that the 

development site is landscaped to an acceptable standard having regard to Policies 9, 20 

and 21 of the Oldham Local Plan, and saved Policy D1.5 of the Unitary Development Plan. 

 

7. If ground contamination, groundwater contamination and/or ground gas are encountered 

on the site at any time before the development is occupied during the watching brief, then 

development shall cease and shall not be occupied until a report detailing what measures, 

if any, are required to remediate the land (the Remediation Strategy), is submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Council as local planning authority and the development shall 

be carried out in accordance with the agreed Remediation Strategy. If no contamination is 

found, then a post-completion report shall be submitted to evidence this. REASON – To 

ensure that the presence of or the potential for any contaminated land and/or groundwater 

is detected, and appropriate remedial action is taken in the interests of public safety in 

accordance with Policy 9 of the Oldham Local Plan. 

 

8. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the physical 

security specifications set out in Section 6 of the submitted Crime Impact Statement 

Version 2.0 – 22.01.22. REASON - To ensure safe form of development in accordance 

with Policy 9 of the Oldham Local Plan 

 

9. No works to trees or shrubs shall take place between the 1st March and 31st August in 

any year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably experienced ecologist has been 

Page 15



carried out immediately prior to clearance and written confirmation provided that no active 

bird nests are present which has been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

REASON - To ensure the protection of bird habitats, which are protected species under 

the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, having regard to Policy 21 of the Oldham Local 

Plan. 

 

10. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the Method 

Statement for the Management of Invasive Species set out in letter dated 07.07.2021 

undertaken by Amenity Tree Care Ltd.  

 

11. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 

recommendations set out in section 9 of the Preliminary Breeding Bird Appraisal dated 

09.07.2021 undertaken by Amenity Tree Care Ltd. REASON - To ensure the protection of 

bird habitats, which are protected species under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, 

having regard to Policy 21 of the Oldham Local  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



SITE LOCATION PLAN (NOT TO SCALE): 
 

 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



APPLICATION REPORT – HOU/349347/22 
Planning Committee 14th September 2022 

 
 
Registration Date: 5th July 2022  
Ward: Werneth  
 
Application Reference: HOU/349347/22 
Type of Application: Householder 
 
Proposal: Part-retrospective application for alterations to the existing roof, 

insertion of rooflights and render. 
 

Location: 49 Heron Street, Oldham, OL8 4LP 
 

Case Officer: Mr Osian Perks 
Applicant: Cllr Zahid Chauhan OBE  
Agent: Mr Jitesh Bhatt 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
In accordance with the Council’s Constitution and Scheme of Delegation the application is 
referred to Planning Committee for determination because the Applicant is an elected 
councillor. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the application is approved for the reasons set out in this report. 
 
 
THE SITE 
 
The application relates to an end-of-terrace residential property sited in Oldham.  It has a rear 
outrigger which has been significantly altered to create a flat-roofed, second floor extension 
and rooflights have been inserted within its front and side elevations.  Permission has 
previously been sought for these alterations (ref: PA/344048/19) but was refused for the 
following reason: 
 
“The proposed extension would, by virtue of its flat roof, and eaves height, appear as an 
awkward and alien addition to the application property which would have a detrimental impact 
upon the character of the application property and that of the wider area. As such, it would fail 
to accord with the visual amenity aims of policies 9 and 20 of the Oldham Local Plan and the 
National Planning Policy Framework.” 
 
 
THE PROPOSAL 
 
Planning permission is sought to re-render the property in white to match the existing render 
and to retain the existing rooflights in the roof.  Permission is also sought to amend the design 
of the roof of the rear outrigger so that that it is built with a dual pitch.  The roof alterations 
proposed would result in the removal of the existing second floor extension. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



 
 
RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES 
 
The ‘Development Plan’ is the Joint Development Plan Document (Local Plan) which forms 
part of the Local Development Framework for Oldham.  The following policies are relevant to 
the determination of this application: 
 
Policy 9 - Local Environment; and, 
Policy 20 – Design. 
 
 
REPRESENTATIONS  
 
The application has been publicised by means of neighbour notification letters.  No responses 
have been received. 
 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Residential Amenity 
 
DPD policy 9 seeks to protect the amenities of the occupants of residential properties by 
ensuring adequate outlook, levels of natural light and privacy. 
 
The side-facing roof lights, whose retention is sought through this application, face upwards 
and are positioned at a relatively low height relative to the finished floor level.  As a 
consequence, the outlook they provide to any occupier is primarily upwards with more 
horizontal or downward views only likely to be easily available to a resident who is positioned 
a significant distance away from the window.   
 
The neighbouring no.47 Heron Street has a side-facing first floor window within its side 
elevation which faces the side elevation of the application property.  It is positioned at a lower 
height relative to ground level than the rooflights subject to this application.  Given the points 
discussed above and the distance of separation between the rooflights and the neighbouring 
no.47 Heron Street, it is considered that their insertion will not result in any future occupant 
gaining unacceptable, intrusive views through the side elevation window of No.47 Heron 
Street. 
 
By virtue of their size, siting and design, the proposed alterations to the roof and front rooflight 
would not cause an unacceptable loss of light or privacy to, nor would they have an oppressive 
impact upon the occupants of the neighbouring properties. 
 
In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development would accord with the 
residential amenity aims of DPD policy 9. 
 
Design  
 
DPD Policy 9 'Local Environment' states that it is necessary to consider how a proposed 
development impacts on the visual appearance of the existing building.  DPD Policy 20 
requires such proposals to respond positively to the environment, contribute to a distinctive 
sense of place, and make a positive contribution to the street scene. 
 

Page 20



The proposed render and pitched roof design would both appear sympathetic to the original 
dwelling and wider street scene.  As such, it is considered that the proposed development 
would accord with the visual amenity aims of DPD policies 9 and 20. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The proposal accords with the objectives of Policies 9 and 20 of the Local Plan and relevant 
policies contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.  Therefore, the application 
is recommended for approval.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
Grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiry of THREE years beginning 
with the date of this permission.  

  
Reason - To comply with the provisions of Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. The development hereby approved shall be fully implemented in accordance with the 

Approved Details Schedule list on this decision notice.  REASON - For the avoidance 
of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans and specifications. 

 
3. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the 

development hereby permitted shall be consistent in terms of colour, size and texture 
with those used in the existing building. 

 
Reason - To ensure that the appearance of the existing building is not detrimentally 
affected by the proposed extension. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



SITE LOCATION PLAN (NOT TO SCALE): 
 
 

 

Page 22



APPLICATION REPORT – HOU/349546/22 
Planning Committee 14th September 2022 

 
 
Registration Date: 1st August 2022  
Ward: Medlock Vale  
 
Application Reference: HOU/349546/22 
Type of Application: Householder 
 
Proposal: First floor rear extension 

 
Location: 227 Windsor Road, Oldham, OL8 1AE 

 
Case Officer: Mr Osian Perks 
Applicant: Mr Mohammed Sageer  
Agent: Mr Mohammed Yaseen 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
In accordance with the Council’s Constitution and Scheme of Delegation the application is 
referred to Planning Committee for determination as the applicant is a familial relation of an 
elected councillor (Councillor Shoab Akthar).   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the application is approved for the reasons set out in this report. 
 
 
THE SITE 
 
This application relates to a mid-terrace residential property located on the north eastern side 
of Windsor Road close to its junction with Frost Street in an established residential area. 
 
 
THE PROPOSAL 
 
Planning permission is sought for the erection of a first-floor rear extension built with a dual-
pitched roof. 
 
 
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
N/A  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES 
 
The ‘Development Plan’ is the Joint Development Plan Document (Local Plan) which forms 
part of the Local Development Framework for Oldham.  The following policies are relevant to 
the determination of this application: 
 
Policy 9 - Local Environment; and, 
Policy 20 – Design. 
 
 
REPRESENTATIONS  
 
The application has been publicised by means of neighbour notification letters. No responses 
have been received. 
 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Residential Amenity 
 
DPD policy 9 seeks to protect the amenities of the occupants of residential properties by 
ensuring adequate outlook, levels of natural light and privacy. 
 
By virtue of its design, depth and height, it is considered that the extension would not have an 
oppressive impact upon, nor would it cause an unacceptable loss of light or privacy to the 
occupants of the neighbouring properties. 
 
Whilst the extension would have a rear facing window within close proximity to those rear 
facing windows of the properties fronting Gainsborough Avenue, the development is located 
in area of high-density development and the separation distance would not be dissimilar to 
that of other properties nearby.  As such, by virtue of its context, it is considered that the 
proposed development would not cause an unacceptable loss of privacy or light to the 
occupants of properties fronting Gainsborough Avenue. 
 
It is therefore considered that the proposed development would accord with the residential 
amenity aims of DPD policy 9. 
 
Design  
 
DPD Policy 9 'Local Environment' states that it is necessary to consider how a proposed 
development impacts on the visual appearance of the existing building.  DPD Policy 20 
requires such proposals to respond positively to the environment, contribute to a distinctive 
sense of place, and make a positive contribution to the street scene. 
 
By virtue of its size and design, the proposed development would appear as a sympathetic 
and subservient addition to the application property.  As such, it is considered that the 
proposed development would accord with the visual amenity aims of DPD policies 9 and 20. 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The proposal accords with the objectives of Policies 9 and 20 of the Local Plan and relevant 
policies contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.  Therefore, the application 
is recommended for approval.  
 

Page 24



RECOMMENDATION  
 
Grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiry of THREE years beginning 
with the date of this permission.  

  
Reason - To comply with the provisions of Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. The development hereby approved shall be fully implemented in accordance with the 

Approved Details Schedule list on this decision notice.  REASON - For the avoidance 
of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans and specifications. 

 
3. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the 

development hereby permitted shall be consistent in terms of colour, size and texture 
with those used in the existing building. 

 
Reason - To ensure that the appearance of the existing building is not detrimentally 
affected by the proposed extension. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



SITE LOCATION PLAN (NOT TO SCALE): 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



 
 

 

Item number: 00 

Planning Appeals Update 

  
Planning Committee  
Report of Head of Planning and Infrastructure 
 

DATE OF COMMITTEE  

 

14 September 2022 

 
An update on Planning Appeals was last provided to the Planning Committee at the meeting 
on 24 August 2022.  The table below provides a comprehensive list of appeals submitted 
and decisions taken on appeals since 12 August 2022 (until 6 September 2022) which is to 
be noted by the Committee.   
 

Application No. Site Address Appeal 
Decision 

Appeal 
Lodged Date 

Description 

     

PA/343735/19 Land On 
Delph New 
Road 
Oldham 
OL3 5BY 
 

Ongoing 10/05/2022 Erection of three new 
dwellings. 

FUL/345402/20 Land Adj To 
Woods House 
Sugar Lane 
Dobcross 
 

Ongoing 25/05/2022 Erection of three 
dwellings. 

FUL/346143/21 5/7 Scholes 
Street And 19 
Rhodes 
Street 
Scholes 
Street 
Oldham 

Ongoing 10/05/2022 Proposed change of 
use of 5-7 Scholes 
Street from office to a 
transitional Care 
Home (Class C2) and 
change of use of 19 
Rhodes Street from 
meeting hall to a soup 
kitchen and dormitory 
with two storey 
extension above the 
existing buildings. 
 
 
 
 

FUL/347636/21 33 Leaside 
Avenue 
Chadderton 
Oldham 

Ongoing 05/05/2022 Change of use of 
property from 
residential use (C3) to 
Class E (day care 
centre). 
 

Page 27

Agenda Item 9



 
 

 

Item number: 00 

HOU/347739/21 161 Oldham 
Road 
Springhead 
Oldham 

Ongoing 07/04/2022 Erection of a fire 
escape and railings 
leading to access 
door on the first floor 
at the rear. 
 

HOU/347813/21 42 
Shadowbrook 
Close 
Oldham 
OL1 2UE 
 

Allowed, 
31/08/2022 

21/04/2022 Retention of external 
garden 
structure/feature to 
rear of property 

FUL/347898/21 Royal Oak Inn 
Broad Lane 
Delph 

Ongoing 28/04/2022 Conversion and 
change of use of 
public house with 
associated living 
accommodation to 
single dwellinghouse 
with garden. 
 

CEA/348450/22 Land At 
Station Road/ 
Harrop Green 
Lane 
Diggle 
Oldham 
 

Ongoing 27/04/2022 Certificate of 
lawfulness for 
Erection of 1 no. 
dwelling. 

FUL/347572/21 6 Walter 
Street 
Oldham 
OL1 1SQ 
 

Dismissed,  
17/08/2022 

13/06/2022 Change of use to 3 
bedroom HMO 
property 

ADV/348628/22 Land On The 
North Side Of 
Huddersfield 
Road 
Lees 
Oldham 
 

Dismissed, 
01/09/2022 

22/06/2022 Installation of an 
internally illuminated 
digital advertising 
display. 

FUL/347429/21 232 Medlock 
Road, 
Failsworth 
 
 

Ongoing 12/07/2022 Construction of a 
stable block 

LBC/347521/21 1A Lower 
Tunstead, 
Tunstead 
Lane, 
Greenfield 
 

Ongoing 12/08/2022 Single and two storey 
rear extensions 

ADV/348747/22 373 Oldham 
Road 
Failsworth 
Oldham 

Ongoing 04/07/2022 Installation of LED 
screen advertisement 
hoarding 

Page 28



 
 

 

Item number: 00 

HOU/348992/22 1 The Grove 
Shaw 
Oldham 
 

Ongoing 26/07/2022 First floor side 
extension 

OUT/347311/21 Land to the 
West of 
Healds 
Green,  
Chadderton 
 

NEW 17/08/2022 Outline planning 
permission for up to 
16no. dwellings, new 
access roads from 
Healds Green and 
Heights Lane, 
provision of 
community car 
parking (20 spaces), 
and double garage for 
no.33 Healds Green 
with extended 
curtilage.  Access, 
Layout and Scale to 
be considered all 
other matters 
reserved. 
 

LBC/347521/21 1A Lower 
Tunstead, 
Greenfield 
 

NEW 12/08/2022 Single and two storey 
rear extensions 

VAR/348675/22 10 Sycamore 
Cottages, 
Treetop 
Close, 
Dobcross 
 

NEW 15/08/2022 Removal of Condition 
2 - relating to planning 
permission 
PA/337483/15 which 
restricts occupation of 
the log cabin for 
purposes ancillary to 
the residential use of 
10 Sycamore 
Cottages 
 

HOU/348815/22 27 
Chadderton 
Fold, 
Chadderton 

NEW 23/08/2022 Demolition of existing 
porch and 
replacement with 
single storey 
extension to the front 
elevation 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION -  That the report be noted. 
 
 

 
The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance with 
the requirements of Section 100D (1) of the Local Government Act 1972.  It does not include 
documents, which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined by that Act. 
 

Page 29



 
 

 

Item number: 00 

If any person has any questions regarding these appeals and decisions, they can request 
further information from the Planning Service by contacting Martyn Leigh (Development 
Management Team Leader) via planning@oldham.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 30

mailto:planning@oldham.gov.uk

	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 FUL/348818/22 - Land South of Greenside Way / West of Greengate, Greengate Industrial Estate, Oldham
	7 HOU/349347/22 - 49 Heron Street, Oldham, OL8 4LP
	8 HOU/349546/22 - 227 Windsor Road, Oldham, OL8 1AE
	9 Appeals Update

